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38th Annual Report 

NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the 38" Annual General Meeting of Members of Key Corp Limited will be held 
on Satu rday, the 10th August, 2024 at 10:00 a.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at 16/16-A, 
Civil Lines, Kanpur to transact the following business:- 

ORDINARY BUSINESS : 

1. 

2. 

3. 
pass 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company as at 31st 
March, 2024, together with Directors Report and Auditors Report thereon, 

To appoint a Director in place of Dr. Mukul Agarwal (DIN 00234962) who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to 
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including 
any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant to 
recommendation of Audit Committee and the Board of Directors M/s. V.P. Aditya & Company, 
Chartered Accountant (Registration No. 000542C) be and is hereby appointed as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company on a remuneration of Rs.55,000/- (Rupees Fifty five thousand only). 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is authorized to do 
all such act, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to 
give effect to this resolution”. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS : 

4, Re-appointment of Shri Raj Kumar Gupta (DIN 00200238) as an Independent Director: 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolutions as 
Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 149 and 152 and any other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") read with Section IV of the Act (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment there of for the time being in force and the 
Companies(Appointment and qualifications of Directors) Rules 2014 as amended from time to 
time Shri Raj Kumar Gupta (DIN 00200238) aged about 63 years (DOB 25.03.1961) who hold 
office of Independent Director upto 10.08.2024 who has submitted a declaration that he meets 
the criteria for independence as provided U/S 149(6) of the Act and Regulations 16(1)(b) of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirement) 
2015and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing U/S 160(1) of the Act 
from a member proposing his candidature for the office of the Director be and Is hereby appointed 
as an Independent Director of the Company not liable for retire by rotation for a first term of 5 
consecutive years to continue to hold position of nan executive independent director w.e-. 
01.04.2024", 

To approve the continuing the Directorship of Ms Manju Jain (DIN 06971010): 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolutions as 
Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Regulation 17(1A) of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirement Amendment Regulation 2018 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment there of for the time being in force) or any 
other applicable law consent be and is hereby accorded for the continuation of Directorship of Ms 
Manju Jain (DIN 06971010) aged about 75 years (DOB 15.09.1949) to continue to hold office as 
a non executive independent director of the Company to hold the position of non executive 
indepe t director beyond 75 f eS : peer ale yah 12 youre oi ape CERTIEIED 10 BE A TRUE COPY, 
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6. To approve the continuing the Directorship of Dr. K.B. Agarwal (DIN 00339934): 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolutions as 
Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Regulation 17(1A) of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirement Amendment Regulation 2018 
(including any statutory madification(s) or re-enactment there of for the time being in force) or any 
other applicable law consent be and is hereby accorded for the continuation of Directorship of Dr. 
K.B. Agarwal (DIN 00339934) aged about 85 years (DOB 01.07.1939) to re-continue to hold 
office as a non executive non independent director of the Company to hold the position of non 
executive independent director beyond 75 years of age". 

Regd. Office : By Order of the Board 
16/16-A, Civil Lines, 

Kanpur — 208 001 
CIN — L65921 UP1985 PLC007547 G.D. Maheshwari 
Web Site: keycorplid.com Executive Director 
E-mail: keycorpltd.@gmail.com (DIN 00235209) 
Phone: 8604627809 

Place: Kanpur 
Dated: 27.05.2024 

CERTIFIED TO RE \ “2UE COPY 
For Key Corp Ltd. 
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Vi. 

NOTES: 

A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member. A proxy form duly completed and signed should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at least 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 

The Register. of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 4th August, 2024 to 10th August, 2024 (both days inclusive). 

Members who are holding shares in identical order of names in more than one folio are requested to write to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company for consolidation of their holding in one folio. 

Members are requested to inform the changes, if any, in their registered addresses to the Registrar & Transfer Agent of the Company M/s. ABS Consultants Pvt. Lid. 99, Stephen House, 6th Floor, 4, B.B.D. Bag (E), Kolkata-700 001. 
Dr. Mukul Agarwal (DIN 00234962) aged 58 years retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. He holds Master Degree in Commerce and Ph.D. in Merchant Banking and Development in India. He has 32 years experience in Finance services and Industry and has successfully established himself as an exporter. He is Director in Mathura Investment Pvt. Ltd., Kals Tex Pvt. Ltd. and Hilman Tex Pyt. Ltd. 
Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts of the company are requested to write to the company at its Registered Office, so as to reach at least 10 days before the date of the meeting to enable the Management to keep the information ready. 
Members who hold shares in Physical/Dematerialized Form are requested to bring their Folio No./Depositary Account Number and client ID Number for identification. 
Pursuant to clause 49 of the Listing Agreement relating to Corporate Governance, the Particulars of Directors proposed to be appointed or re-appointed are given in the report on Corporate Governance attached to the Directors Report. 
In terms of Section 107 and 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is providing its members the facility to exercise their right to vote by electronic means on any or all of the businesses specified in the accompanying Notice. Necessary arrangements have been made by the Company with Central Depository Services Ltd. (“CDSL") to facilitate remote e-voting. Remote e-voting is optional and members shall have the option to vote either through remote €-voting or in person at the General Meeting through Ballot or Polling paper. 
Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the member/beneficial owner (in case of electronic shareholding) as on the cut-off date ie. 3” August, 2024, 

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of member or in the register of beneficial owner maintained by the depositories as on cut-off date i.e. 3¢ August, 2024 only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote €-voting/voting through ballot or polling paper at the meeting. 
The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under: 
The voting period begins on 07.08.2024 at 9.00 A.M. and ends on 09.08.2024 at 5.00 P.M. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date ie. 3m August, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 
The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com 
Click on “Shareholders”. 

Now enter your user ID. 

a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

b) For NSDL: 8 character DP ID followed by 8 digits Client ID, 
c) Members holding shares in Physical form should enter folio number registered with the Company. 

Next enter the image verification as displayed and Click on “Login”. 
lf you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.cam and voted on an earlier voting of any company; then your existing Password is to be used. 

CERTIFIED TO BE A TUF Cony 
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Vil. lf you are a first time user follow the steps given below:- 

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric “PAN issued by Income Tax Department 
(applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholder) 

« Members who have not updated their PAN with the company/depository 
participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 
digits of the Sequence Number in the PAN field. 

e In case the sequence number Is less than 8 digits enter the applicable 
number of 0's before the number after the first two characters of the name 
in capital letter. Eg. If your name is Heera Singh with sequence number 1 
then enter HEOQO000001 in the PAN field, 

DOB e Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the 
company records for the said demat account or folio in dd/mmi/yyyy format. 

Dividend « Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in 
Bank 

Details 

the Company records for the said demat account or folio. 

e Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank details in order to login. If the 
details are not recorded with the Depository or the Company, please enter 
the member ID/Folia number in the dividend bank details field as 
mentioned in instructions (iv). 

VIL. 

xl, 

All. 

Alll. 

XIV. 

XV, 

XVI. 

After entering these details appropriately click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the company selection screen. 
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach “Password Creation” menu 
wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. 
Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat halders for voting for resolutions of 
any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting 
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other 
person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential, 

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 
resolutions contained in this Notice. 

Click on the EVSN for the relevant “company name" on which you choose to vote. 

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the 
option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that 
you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

Click on the “RESOLUTION FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolutions. 

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation 
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, 
click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote, 

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resclution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

You can also take print out-of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option 

onthe Voting page. == @RRTIFIRD TO BE A TRUE COPY 
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If demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User ID and image 
verification Code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 

Non individuals shareholders (ie. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and custodian are 
required to log on to https:/www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates. A 
scanned copy of the registration form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be e-mailed 
to helpdesk.evotingsindia.cam. 

After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin login and 
password. The compliance user would be able to link the accounts for which they wish to vote 
on. 

The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of 
the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

A scanned copy of the Board resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 
favour of custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to 
verify the same. 

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section 
or write an email io helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

The Company has appointed Mrs. Ratna Tewari, Kanpur a Practicing Company Secretary (C.P. 
No, 19765 as the Scrutinizer for conducting the e-voting process in fair and transparent manner. 

A copy of this notice has been placed on the website of the Company and the website of CDSL, 

In case of Members who are entitled to vote but have not exercised their right to vote by 
electronic means, the facility of ballot paper or polling paper shall be made available at the 
meeting. 

For abundant clarity, please note that the Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting 
prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share 
capital of the Company. The poll process shall be conducted and scrutinized and report thereon 
will be prepared in accordance with Section 109 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014. 

Regd. Office : By Order of the Board 
16/16-A, Civil Lines, 

Kanpur — 208 001 

G.D. Maheshwari 
7 COPY 5 
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 on item 
no.4,5 and 6, 

1. Independent Director Shri Raj Kumar Gupta have completed his five years term on the date of 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. In terms of Section 149 and any other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 Shri Raj Kumar Gupta is proposed to be appointed as Independent Director for 
five consecutive years till 2029, Respective Notice have been received from a member proposing his 
candidature for the office of the Director of the Company. In the opinion of the Board Shri Raj Kumar 
Gupta fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under for his 
appointment as an Independent Director of the Company. 

Shri Raj Kumar Gupta holds Degree of Commerce and Practicing Chartered Accountants (FCA). He 
has more than 33 years’ experience in Accounts /Audit and taxation. He is proprietor of M/s Nand Raj & 
Associates Chartered Accountants. 

Pursuant to sub Regulation 1A of Regulation 17 of Securities and exchange Board of India (Listinc 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement } Regulation 2015 Inserted by SEBI (Listing Agreement anc 
disclosers Requirement (Amendment) Regulations 2018 approved of members by way of Specia 
Resolution is necessary for pursuant to clause 49 of Listing Agreement for appointment/continuatior 
by way of non executive and independent director who has attained the age of 75 years of Ms Manjt 
Jain aged about 75 years (DOB 15.09.1949) is non executive independent director of the Company 
The resume of Ms Manju Jain is given below: 

Ms Manju Jain holds Master Degree in Science and also degree of Batchler of Education and better 
experience in teaching and Social Welfare work of more than 39 years. 

Pursuant to sub Regulation 1A of Regulation 17 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listinc 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement ) Regulation 2015 Inserted by SEB! (Listing Agreement anc 
disclosers Requirement (Amendment) Regulations 2018 approved of members by way of Specia 
Resolution is necessary for appointment/continuation by way of non executive and non independen 
director who has attained the age of 75 years Dr. K.B, Agarwal aged about 85 years (DOB 01.07.1939’ 
is non executive non independent director of the Company. The resume of Dr. K.B, Aganwal is giver 
below pursuant to clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. 

He holds Batcheler degree of Law from Kanpur University and Master Degree in Commerce and Ph.D 
in Commerce and is a Fellow Member of Institute of Company Secretaries of India, He has experience 
in the fisid of finance, accounts and capital market. He is the promoter and director since incorporatior 
of the Company. He has served Merchants Chamber of Commerce U.P. and U.P. Stock Exchange 
Association Ltd. As their President. He has been Member of Federation of Indian Chamber o 
Commerce and Industries and Associated Chamber of Commerce & Industry of India. 

Regd. Office : By Order of the Board 
16/16-A, Civil Lines, 
Kanpur — 208 001 
CIN — L65921 UP1985 PLC007547 G.D. Maheshwari 
Web Site: keycorpltd.com Director 
E-mail: keycorpltd.@gmail.com (DIN 00235209) 
Phone: 8604627809 

Place: Kanpur 
Dated : 27.05.2024 For Key Corp Ltd. 
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38th Annual Report 

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE TO STAKEHOLDERS 

Dear Stakeholders, 

It gives me immense pleasure to share my views with our valued stakeholders on the 
38™ Annual Report for the year 2023-24, 

| am pleased to report that during the year 2023-24 your Company has delivered good 
financial performance. 

During the year 2023-24 company has executed Loan business to the tune of 
Rs. 101.80 lacs as compared to Rs.73.20 lacs in the previous year. The Company is 
concentrating utilising surplus funds in mutual fund schemes. 

PRESENT ECONOMIC SCENARIO AND PROSPECTS: 

As of 2024, India's economy is experiencing robust growth, with GDP projected to rise 
by 6-7%, making it one of the fastest-growing large economies globally. This growth is 
driven by key sectors like services, manufacturing, and agriculture. Inflation remains a 
concern, with prices rising at about 5-6%, prompting the Reserve Bank of India to take 
measures to control it. Employment is improving, but urban and youth unemployment 
still pose challenges. Exports, particularly in pharmaceuticals and IT services, are 
recovering, and strong Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) is bolstering the economy, 
especially in technology, infrastructure, and renewable energy. 

Significant infrastructure projects and rapid digitalization are expected to boost 
economic activity and job creation. Investments in renewable energy align with global 
sustainability goals, and modernization of agriculture aims to enhance productivity and 
rural incomes. India is also pursuing more trade agreements to strengthen its global 
trade presence. However, challenges such as managing inflation, reducing income 
inequality, and addressing the impacts of climate change persist. 

Overall, policy reforms and strategic investments are essential for sustaining India's 
economic momentum and achieving long-term growth. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

Before | conclude, on behalf of the Board of Directors and on my own behalf, | would 
like to express my gratitude to our stakeholders and staff for their faith in our abilities 
to continuously improve our working. 

CERTIFIRD [TQ 86 AL: QPey Por key Garp ea: 
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a) 

b) 

c) 

a) 

DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 

Your Directors present the 38th Annual Report and Audited Accounts of the Company for the 
year ended 31st March, 2024. 

(Rs.in lakhs) 
FINANCIAL RESULTS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Income from Operations 28.40 27,83 

Income from Investment in Mutual Funds 3196.69 1590.18 

Other Income 0.00 0.00 

Less :Operating Expenditure 67.31 T7.13 

Profit Before Depreciation 3157.78 1540.88 

Less :Depreciation 5.10 4.72 

Net Profit for the Year before tax 3152.68 1536.16 

Less: Provisions for Income Tax 0.00 0.84 

Add : Provision for Deferred Tax 0.34 1.04 

Profit after tax 3153.02 1536.35 

Balance of Profit brought forward 4294.75 2758.73 

Amount Available for appropriation 3157.09 4295.08 

after adjustments 

APPROPRIATIONS TO:- 
General Reserve 0.00 00.00 

Statutory Reserve Fund 0.00 0.33 

Balance Carried over 7451.84 4294.75 

DIVIDEND 
In order to build up resources your Directors do not recommend payment of dividend for the 
Financial Year 2023-24 

PERFORMANCE 
Looking to the highly competitive market scenario, your Company has done well. Your Company 
is investing the Surplus Funds in mutual fund schemes to augment income. 

DIRECTORS 

In accordance with the provision of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
Articles of Association, Dr. Mukul Agarwal, Director retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment. 

Shrii Raj Kumar Gupta (DIN 00200238) having completed five years are seeking re-appointment 
for five years by Special Resolution, 

Ms. Manju Jain (DIN 06971010) attained the age of 75 years are seeking re-appointment by 
Special Resolution, 
Dr. K.B. Agarwal (DIN 00339934) having completed 5 years of appointment under regulation 
17(A) re-appointment by Special Resolution 

Further the Board appraised the performance of the independent directors and found their 
contribution to the proceedings of the Board beneficial for the Company. They have attended 
almost all the Board meetings and Committee meetings held from time to time. Further, the 
independent directors have given a declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as 
provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

CERTIFIED TO BE * TRUE COPY 
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10. 

14. 

12. 

13. 

14, 

TS, 

17. 

18. 

19. 

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS REPORT 
The Present Auditors M/s. V.P. Aditya & Company, Chartered Accountant (Registration No. 
000542C) will retire from their office at the ensuing General Meeting. They have confirmed their 
eligibility to the effect that their re-appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits 
under the Act and that they are not disqualified for re-appointment. You are requested to 
consider their appointment. The qualifications in the Auditors Report is self explanatory and has 
been described in the Notes on Account. 

DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTOR 
The Practicing Company Secretary has given a certificate that none of the Directors on the 
Board of the Company have been debarred er disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as a directors of Companies by the Board/MCA ar any such statutory authority. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
There are no employees getting salary in excess of the limit as specified under the provision of 
section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. i 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
The Company has no activities relating to conservation of energy or technology absorption, There 
is no foreign exchange earning and outgo during the year. 

LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE 
The Companies shares are listed with Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd., Mumbai. 

The Company's shares are marketable in Demat mode only. Shareholders are requested to 
convert their physical shareholding into Demat moce. 

FINE LEVIED BY BOMBAY STOCK EXCHNAGE LTD. 
The Stock Exchange levied fine a totalling of of Rs.35,400/- under Regulation 29(2), 29(3) and 
23(9) Rs.11,800/- Regulation 23(9) and Rs.23,600/- Requlation 29(3). The Company has 
deposited the same on 22.03.2024 and 18.07.2023, 

INCOME TAX PROCEEDINGS 
Company's assessments are completed upto the assessment year 2023-24 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
During the year the Committee held five meetings. 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
During the year the committee held two meeting.. 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
During the year the committee held four meetings. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
Although the net profit at the close of the financial year is arrived at Rs.31,57,09,613.83 but it 
includes notional gain of Rs. 31,67,99,823.00 on account of market valuation of investment which 
is not to be considered for the purposes of CSR as per section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
This Company is not covered under CSR obligation as the profit is below Rs. 5.00 crore. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
As per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges, a report on Corporate Governance is enclosed as integral part of the Annual Report together with the Auditors 
Certificate in compliance. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
In terms of Clause 49 of Listing Agreement of the Stock Exchanges, Management 
Discussions and Analysis Report forms part of this report. 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies 
(Appointment & Remuneration and Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Company 
appointed Mrs. Ratna Tewari, Practicing Company Secretary of Kanpur (CP Membership 
No. 19765) as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. The 
Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31*, 2024 is annexed to this 
report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or 
adverse remarks, CERTIFIED 10 RE A TRUE COPY 
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20. 

21. 

ees 

23. 

24. 

25. 

26. 

27. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
Extract of Annual Return of the Company in MGT- 9 is annexed hereto as Annexure ‘A” ar 

form integral part of this report. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
Subject to Note No. 23 of the Annual Accounts there was no significant transaction | 
material nature with the related parties viz Promoters, Directors, Management or relative 

during the year and the provisions of Section 188 of the Company's Act, 2013 are ni 
attracted. 

REMUNERATION POLICY 

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a frame work in relation | 
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. The details of th 
Policy is explained in the Corporate Governance Report. 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
The Company has endeavoured to develop and implement a risk management polic 
incorporating and identifying economic, financial and environmental risks. 

EVALUATION OF BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES 

The evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board excludir 
the directors being evaluated. Further, the Board also carried out assessment of its ow 
performance and that of its committees based upon criteria such as performance against s 
objectives, contribution to the development of long term strategy and risk management, lev: 
of communication amongst the Board/Committee members and of the Board/Committe 
members with Key Managerial Personnels. 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
The details of the member of meetings of the Board held during the financial year 2023-2 
forms part of the Corporate Governance Report. 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Board of Directors has already adopted a Code of Ethics & Business Conduct for tt 
Directors and Senior Managerial Personnel. 

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
Your Directors confirm : 

I, that in the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards had bee 

followed and that there were no material departures, 

i. that the directors have selected such accounting policies & applied them consistently ar 
made judgments & estimates that are reasonable & prudent so as to give a true and fe 
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year ended 37 
March, 2024 and of the profit of the Company for that year; 

tH. that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequa’ 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2073, fi 
safe-guarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud ar 
other irregularities; 

IV, that the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

Vv. that the internal financial controls were laid down to be followed and that such internal 
financial controls were adequate and were operating effectively; 

VI. proper systems were devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively; 

28. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Your Directors wish to thanks the employees for their dedication and hard work. 

Place : Kanpur For and on behalf of the Boa! 
Dated : 27.05.2024 

(K.B. AGARWAL) 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

I) STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT: 

Your Company is a registered NBFC and is engaged in finance business since inception from 1986. The Company's 
thrust area is vehicle financing, particularly in old vehicle finance and investment of Surplus Funds in Mutual Funds. 
The Company has developed expertise in financing and recovery of its loan and built up sound porticlio of old 
vehicles. The business activities of the Company are mainly concentrated in the State of Uttar Pradesh where it has 
found enough scope, 

ll) OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS: 

With the growth in economy, particularly the service sector, there is ample scope for vehicle financing which is 
company’s thrust area. Company has developed expertise during the period of 38 years in financing of used 
vehicles, Company looks forward to avail such opportunities by expanding area net-work. 

However, as the vehicle financing is a high risk area, particularly in the northern region where the company is 
operating, itis moving forward with caution. Moreover, there is severe competition from the organized banking sector 
particularly, private sector banks. 

Further, the company foresees substantial potential in revenue generation from its activity of investing surplus funds 
in mutual funds, which is however subjected to market risks. 

lil) PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE: 

The company is not a manufacturing company and is engaged only in vehicle financing and investment in Mutual 
Funds. The performance of the company has been satisfactory in the current economic scenario, 

IV) OUTLOOK: 

As has been explained above, future business scenario is hopeful. 

V) RISKS AND CONCERNS: 

Risk is an inherent part of finance business. Your company, however, has taken steps in strengthening the risk 
management systems and practices. The company is continuously monitoring the business by deputing recovery 
managers 

VI INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM: 

The company has adequate Internal Control System commensurate with the size and nature of its business with 
regard to finance, recovery and investment. 

Vil) OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE: 

Looking to the highly competitive econamic conditions, your company has done well and has secured the business to 
the tune of Rs.101.80 LACS. 

Significant Financial Ratios: 
§.No| Particulars of Ratios 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023 | Remarks (In cases of variances of +/- 25%) 
4, Debtors Turnover Ratio 27.23 26,50 The increase in ratio is due to the decrease in 

the trade receivables as at 31.03,.2024.. 
2. Current Ratio 4.45 1.48 The Increase in ratio is due to the increase in 

the amount of cash and cash equivalents as at 
31.03.2024, 

3: Operating Profit Margin -18.38% 1.99% | The decrease is due to decline in operating 
income as on 31.03.2024, 

4, Net Profit Margin 97, 76% 94.94% The increase in the margin due to impact of net 
profit on fair value changes of investments. __ 

tae Return on Net Worth 49.90% 32.66% | The increase in the margin due to impact of net 
profit on fair value changes of investments. 

Vill) HUMAN RESOURCES: 

The company has a professional team to control its day to day activities under the guidance of the Executive 
Director. 
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RATNA TIWARI 
Company Secretary 
A peer-reviewed unit 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT (MR-3) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2024 

Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

KEY CORP LIMITED 

CIN: L65921UP1985PLC007547 

16/16-A Civil Lines Kanpur, 

Uttar Pradesh, India, 208001 

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 

goad corporate practice by M/s. KEY CORP LIMITED (CIN: L65921UP1985PLC007547) (hereinafter called “The 

Company”), Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 

authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the 

Company has, during the year ended on 31st March, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed 

hereunder and also that the company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the 

extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

| have examined the books, papers, minute dooks, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to the provisions of: 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder. 

ii, The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

ili. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder to the extent of Regulation 

76 of SEB\(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018; 

: “(tue rey 
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RATNA TIWARI 
Company Secretary 
A peer-reviewed unit 

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings, (Not applicable 
during the year); 

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 {‘SEBI Act’):- 

vi. 

vii. 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantiat Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011, as amended from time to time; 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, ; 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018 (Not applicable to the company during the yearl, ; 

The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015; as amended from time to time. 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the company during the year) 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not 
applicable to the company during the year); 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client: 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable 
to the company during the year); 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to 
the company during the year); 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Non - Convertible Securities) Regulations, 
2021 (Not applicable to the company during the year); 

The Sexual Harassrnent of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 

Goods and Services Tax Act; 2017, 

yh fay. Mobile-: 7255562545 
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RATNA TIWARI 
Company Secretary 
A peer-reviewed unit 

ii. During the audit period under review, there were no specific laws which were exclusively applicable to the 

Company / Industry. However, having regard to the Compliance system prevailing in the Company and or 

examination of relevant documents and records on test - check basis, the Company has complied witt 

the material aspects of the following significant laws applicable to the Company being an NBFC Company; 

e Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; 

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of the Company Secretaries of india (ICSI) and made effective 

from time to time. 

ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited (BSE} 

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations 

Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations: 

Not applicable 

During the year under review the Company has filed periodical returns and has generally complied with thi 

provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

Company has received show cause frem SEBI as mentioned: 

(i) The Company was in receipt of letter on July 17th, 2023 as per SEBI circular no 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/12 dated 20 January 2020 in which SEBI has imposed fine on the company fo 
making delay in furnishing disclosure of related party transactions as per Regulation 23(9) of SEBI (LODR), 2015. 

The Company has deposited the fine imposed by SEB! an 05.01.2022 but the amount of GST could not be pair 
which was deposited on 17.07.2023. 

(ii!) The Company was in receipt of letter on March 15th, 2024 as per SEBI circular no 
$EBI/HO/CFD/PaD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023 in which SEB! has Imposed the fine on the company fo 
making delay in furnishing prior intimation about the meeting of the Board of Directors as per (Regulation 29(2) 
29(3) of SEBI (LODR), 2015. 

The Company has paid the fine imposed by SEBI on 22.03.2024, 

rf 
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RATNA TIWARI 

Company Secretary 
A peer-reviewed unit 

| further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non- 

Executive Directors and Independent Directors including Women Director, There was no cessation/appointment 

during the period under review. 

Except in case of meetings convened at shorter notice, adequdte notice is given to all directors to schedule the 

Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system 

exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 

for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

All the Decisions at the meetings of Board of Directors/ Committees of the Company were carried out with 

requisite majority. 

| further report that: 

Based on the review of compliance mechanism established by the Company, the information provided by the 

Company, its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of the audit and compliance certificate(s) 

placed before the Board Meetings, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with 

the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable general laws, rules, 

regulations and guidelines. 

| further report that: 

The Compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws like Direct and Indirect Tax laws, has not been 

reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to the review by the Statutory Auditors and other 

designated professionals. 

| further report that; 

During the Audit period under review, there were no other instances of: 

a) Public/Right issue of shares/ debentures/sweat equity ete. 

b) Redemption / buy-back of securities. 

c) Majer decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

d) Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, ete. 

2) Foreign technical collaborations 

Mobile : 7255562545 
E-mail : csratnatiwari@gmail.com 
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" ne, you 
sepisllT as 4 Set ue 

CS Ratna Hwan << ~ 
' Practicing Company Secretary 

M. No.: AS51400 

C.P.No.: 19765 

UDIN: AO51400F000404247 

Peer review certificate No. 3081/2023 

Date: 20/05/2024 

Place: Kanpur 

Note: This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an inte; 

part of this report. 

1, This Report is limited to the Statutory Compliances on laws / regulations / guidelines listed in our r¢ 

which have been complied by the Company up te the date of this Report pertaining to financial 

ended March 2024. 
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RATNA TIWARI 

Company Secretary 
A peer-reviewed unit 

To Annexure-A 

The Members, 

KEY CORP LIMITED 

CIN: L65921UPi985PLC007547 

16/16-A Civil Lines Kanpur, 

Uttar Pradesh, India, 208001 

Our report af even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company, 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. Ihave followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance at 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basi: 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. | believe that the process and practice 

followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion, 

3. (have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 
Company. 

4, Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, ri 
and regulations and happening of events, etc: 

2. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standarc 
the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on- 
basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 

Oped 

cs Ratna Tiwari 

Practicing Company Secretary 

M. No.: AS51400 

CP. No: 19765 

UDIN;: AO51400F000404247 

Peer review certificate No. 3081/2023 
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FORM NO. MGT 9 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2024 
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the 

Company (Management & Admini istration ) Rules, 2014, 

l REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

i CIN L65921UP1985PLC007547 
il Registration Date 26.11.1985 

ili Name of the Company KEY CORP LIMITED 
iv Category/Sub-category of the Company PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY 

16/16 A CIVIL LINES KANPUR 208001 
Address of the Registered office PHONE NO.0512 2305416 Website - 

Vv & contact details keycorpltd.com 
vi Whether listed company YES 

ABS CONSULTANT PVT LTD} 
R.NO.99,STEPHEN HOUSE 6TH FLOOR 
4BBD BAG {E) KOLKATA- 700001 

Name, Address & contact details of the E-MAIL-absconsultant@vsnI,net Phone 
vii___ [Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. No.033 22201043 

ll PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the 
company shall be stated 

SLNo Name & Description of main NiCCode ofthe |% to total turnover 
products/services Product /service jof the company 

a FINANCIAL SERVICES AND INVESTMENT 9971 100 

ill PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

SINo | Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN HOLDING/ %OF | APPLICABLE 
SUBSIDIARY/ SHARES |SECTION 
ASSOCIATE HELD 

1 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
2 

3 
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Rone (V. K./Pan Gey) 
Joint Scores 

— 

lV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity) 

Category of Shareholders | No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held atthe endofthe year |% Change 

year during the 

year 

Demat | Physical | Total |%ofTotal] Demat | Physical | Total |% of Total 

Shares Shares 

A, Promoters 

(1) Indian 

a) Individual/HUF 4144519 0] 4144519 69.08] 4144519 O| 4144519 69.08) 0 

b) Central Govt.or 

State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

c) Bodies Corporates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
d) Bank/Fl 0 ) ) 0 0 0 0 0 0 
e) Any other ) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) 4144519 0} 4144519 69.08] 4144519 0} 4144519 69.08 0 

(2) Foreign 

a) NRI- Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Oo} 0 

b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 | 0 
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o| 0 

d) Banks/Fi 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o| 0 
e) Any other... 0 0 0 0 0 0 Oley 0 i) 

SUB TOTAL (A) (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Shareholding of 

Promoter 

(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2) 4144519 O| 4144519 69,08) 4144519 OQ} 4144519 69.08 0 

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING 

(1) Institutions 

a) Mutual Funds ) 600 600 0.01 0 600 600 0.01 0 
b) Banks/Fl 600 100 700 0.01 600 100 700 0,01 ) 
C) Central govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
LE e) Venture Capital Fund 0 0 i 0 0 0 0 0 0 

f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

g) FIIS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
h) Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds 0 0 ) 0 0 0 0 0 

i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 

SUB TOTAL (B){1): 600 700 1300 0.02 600 700 1300 0.02 0 

(2) Non Institutions 

a) Bodies corporates 

i) Indian 19607 22400 42007 0.70 22562 22400 44962 0.75 0,05 
ii) Overseas 0 0 0 i) 0 0 i) 0 0 

fa gO tO pea TRUE COPY 
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b) Individuals 

i) Individual shareholders 

holding nominal share 

capital upto Rs.1 lakhs 402211| 1326609] 1728820 28.81 437185} 1295908) 1733097 28.88 0.0 

li) Individuals shareholders 

holding nominal share 

capital In excess of Rs. 1 

lakhs 78838 0 78838 1,31 60000 i) 60000 1,00 -0.3 

c) Others (specify) NRI 4516 0 4516 0.08 16122 0 16122 0.27 0.1 

SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 505172] 1349009| 1854181 30,90 535873) 1318308) 1854181 30.90) 

Total Public Shareholding 

({B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2) 505772] 1349709] 1855481 30.92| 536473] 1319008] 1855481 30.92: 

C. Shares held by Custodian 

for 

GDRs & ADRs 0 0 0 0 0 (a) 0 0 

Grand Total (A+B+C) 4650291] 1349709; 6000000 100) 4680992} 1319008] 6000000 100.00 
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(il) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS 

51 No, Shareholders Name Shareholding at the Shareholding at the % change 
beggining of the year end of the year In share 

holding 

during the 

year 
NO of shares |%oftotal shares |%ofshares pledged |NO at oftotal |% of shares 

ofthe company | encumbered to total |shares shares pledged 
shares of the encumbered 

company {to total shares 

1 KRISHNA BEHAR| AGARWAL 4144519 69,08 0} 4144515 69,08 0 0 
2 

Total 4144519 69.08 O} 4144519 69,08 0 0 

(iff) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE) 
Sl.No, Share holding at the beginning of | Cumulative Share holding during 

the Year the year 

No. of Shares |% of total shares | No of shares % of total 
of the company shares of 

the 

company _| 
At the beginning of the year 4144519 69,08 4144519 69.08 

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Direcors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs) 

SI, No Shareholding As on 31.03.2023 | Shareholding As on 31,03,2024 

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders | No.of shares | % of total shares No of shares % of total 
of the company shares of 

the 

company 
1 |Mahendra Girdhari Lal 54443 0,91 60000 1.00 
2 Usha Sal Yelisettl = : 2293 0.14 

Bic ee ee 
4 Sangeeta Lakra 7144 0,12 7144 0.12 

a Rama Mehta 7000 0,12 7000 0,12 

" lompeiashtcaierooman” | 0 | | eM 
7 |Pramil Prabhakar Borse - : 5173 0.09 
a Vipul Rajendra Bhal Gandhl 7500 0.13 5000 0.08 
g _|Rinku Ben Jaimin Patel : : 5000 0,08 
79 0 | Sudhir Lakra i . 4945 0.08 
a1 —_|Vinod Shankerlal Tibrewala 78838 131 : . 

12 |Aumit Capital Advisors Ltd. 12500 0,21 : : 

43 ~— ‘| Vijaya Commercial Credit Ltd, 8800 0.15 < - 
14 —_‘| Sunil Desoura 6043 0.10 . * 

15 | Parikh Nitesh Jagdish Bhat 4500 0,08 : : 

t 

(MV. K. Pandey) 
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(v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP 

S|. No 
Shareholding at the end of the Cumulative Shareholding dur 

Previous year the year 

For Each of the Directors & KMP No.of shares | % of total shares No of shares %ott 

of the company 
share 

thi 

comp 

A Directors 

1)Ms Manju Jain NA NA 

At the end of the year (or on the date 100 0 100 

of sepration if seprated during the 

year 31.03.2023 

2|Shri Gokul Das Maheshwari NA NA 

‘At the end of the year (or on the date 40 fe 40 

of sepration if seprated during the 

year 31.03.2023 

3|Shri Raj Kumar Gupta NA NA 

‘At the end of the year (or on the date 100 0 100 

of sepration if seprated during the 

year 31.03.2023 

B Key Managing Personnel 

6|Shri RN Singh 
NA NA 

‘At the end of the year (or on the date 20 0 20 

of sepration if seprated during the 

= year 31.03.2023 
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Vv INDEBTEDNESS 

indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for Payment 
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Tatal 

excluding Loans Indebtedness 
deposits 

‘edebtness at the beginning of the 
nancial year 

| Principal Amount 

» Interest due but not paid 
©) Interest accrued but not due 

Total (i+ii+1ii) 

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year 

Additions 

Reduction 

Net Change 

indebtedness at the end of the financial 
year 

Principal Amount 

| Interest due but not paid 
~) Interest accrued but not due 

Total (i+iiviii) 

Vi REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager: 

| Si.No Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD/Ma ager Total Amount 1___|Gross salary _ 
Shri G D Maheshwari (a) Salary as per provisions 

477300 477300 contained in section 17(1) of 
the Income Tax, 1961, 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2) of the Income tax Act, 
1961 

129880 129880 (c) Profits in liew of salary 
under section 17(3) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1964 

0 0 2 Stock option 
0 

0 3 Sweat Equity 
0 ee Commission as of Profit 
t) 0 5 Others, please specify 
0 0 \ Total (A) 

607180 607180 ! Ceiling as per the Act 
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B. Remuneration to other directors: 

S\.No Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors Total Amat 

Independent Directors 
Ms Manju Shri R.K.Gupta 

Shri R.K.Tandon 

1 

(a) Fee for attending board 

committee meetings 
14000 40000 23000 8 

(b) Commission 
0 0 0 

(c) Others, please specify 
0 0 0 

Total (1) 
14000 40000 28000 8 

2 Other Non Executive Directors Dr K B Agarwal Dr Mukul Agarwal 

(a) Fee for attending 

board committee meetings 
30000 15000 . 4 

{b) Commission 
i) 0 0 

(c ) Others, please specify. 
i) 0 0 

Total (2) 
30000| 15000 0 4 

Total (B)=(1+2) 
44000 55000 28000 12 

Total Managerial 

Remuneration (A+B) 
651180 55000 28000 Ga 

Overall Cieling as per the Act. 

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD 

sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration | Key Managerial Personnel 

Smt Namrata Shukla SriR N Singh 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer cFO 

a! Gross Salary 
Tot 

{a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in section 17(1) of 
420000 288060 1 

the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 

17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 
0 86710 

1961 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary 

under section 17(3) of the 

Income Tax Act, 1961 
0 Q 

2 Stock Option 
0 0 

3 Sweat Equity 
0 0 

4 Commission as % of Profit 
0 0 

5 Others, please specify 
0 0 

Total (A) 
120000 374770 
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Vil PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES 

a Type Section of the |Brief Details of Authority Appeall made if 
Companies Act |Description |Penalty/Punishm |(RD/NCLT/Co |any (give 

ent/Compoundin |urt) details) 
oe g fees imposed 

0 
0 

000 A. COMPANY 

Penalty 

Punishment NIL 

0 Compounding 

45000 

7000 B. DIRECTORS 

180 
Penalty 

a Punishment NIL 

Compounding 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

i Penalty 

Punishment NIL 

408060 Compounding | 

6710 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The detailed report on Corporate Governance in the format prescribed by SEB! and incorporated in clause 49 

of the Listing Agreement is set out below: 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages the attainment of the highest level of 

transparency, accountability and equity in all facets of its operations and in all its interactions with its 

stakeholders including shareholders, employees and the clients. The company believes that all its 

operations and actions must serve the goal of enhancing overall share value over a sustained period of 

time. 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
The present strength of the Board of Directors is Six, whose composition is given below: 

One promoter Non-Executive & Non-independent Director, Three Independent Non-Executive Directors 
(including one women director), One Non-Independent Non-Executive Director and One Non-Independent 

Executive-Director. 

The Board of Directors met 6 times during the year. These were on 17/04/2023, 16/05/2023, 12/08/2023, 

26/10/2023,19/01/2024 and 12/02/2024. 

The Composition of the Board of Directors, attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and at the last 
Annual General Meeting as also the number of Directorships and Committee Memberships held by them 
in other Companies are given below : 

Name of Director Category No of No of Attendance of Relationship Na af No. of Membership 
Board Board ihe last AGM Interested Directorship in in Committee of 

Meetings Meetings held on Director other Directors in other 
Held Attended 06/08/2023 Companies Campanies 

Chairman_| Memb 
Dr, K. B. Agarwal Promoter 6 6 Yes Or. Mukul Agarwal - - 
Chairman Non-Independent (Son) 

Non-Executive 
Dr. Mukul Agarwal Non-Independent 6 3 No Or. K.B. Agarwal - - 
Director ¢ Non-Executive (Father) 
Shri RK, Gupta Independent Non & 4 Yes = - - 

Director Executive 
Mis, Manju Jain Independent Non 6 8 Yes “ - - 

Director Executive 

Shri R.K. Tandon Independent & 2 Yas - = 

Director Non-Executive 
Shri G. D. Maheshwari Non- 6 6 Yes - - 
Director Independent 

Executive 

MEETING OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
During the year under review, a separate meeting of Independent Directors was held to assess and review 

the performance of Non Independent Directors, Board and timely flow of information to Board from the 
Company's management. The Independent Directors of the Company were satisfied with the performance 
and timely flow of information. 

EVALUATION OF BOARD AND ITS MEMBERS 

The evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board excluding the directors 

being evaluated. Further, the Board also carried out assessment of its own performance and that of its 
committees based upon criteria such as performance against set objectives, contribution to the 
development of long term strategy and risk management, level of communication amongst the 
Board/Committee members and of the Board/Committee members with Key Managerial Personnels. 

3. DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTOR 
The Practicing Company Secretary has given a certificate that none of the Directors on the Board of the 
Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as a directors of 
Companies by the Board/MCA or any such statutory authority. 

4. AUDIT COMMITTEE 
A. Composition and Broad Terms of Reference 

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises of following three directors :- 
Shri R.K- Gupta : Independent, Non-Executive Director & Chairman of the Committee 
Ms. Manju Jain : Independent, Non-Executive Director 
Shri Ravindra Kumar Tandon =: Independent, Non-Executive Director 
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All these Directors possess knowledge of Corporate Finance/Accounts/Company Law. The Statutory Auditors attend the meetings as invitees. 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee constituted by the Board in terms of Section 177 of the 52 49 Companies Act, 2013 and the Gorporate Governance code as prescribed under clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. 

5. Meetings/Attendance 
vel of During the financial year ended 31! March, 2024, five meetings were held on 15.05.2023, 11.08.2023, ith its 26.10.2023,19.01.2024 and 12.02.2024, 

its 
a of The Committee approved the annual accounts for the year 2022-2023 in their meeting held on 16% May, 2023. 

The attendance of the committee meetings is as under : 
Name of Members Meetings Held Meetings Attended Shri Raj Kumar Gupta 5 4 Ms. Manju Jain 5 5 actors Shri Ravindra Kumar Tandon 5 2 

ndent 

wi
 NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

023 & COMPOSITION 
The Nomination and Remuneration Cammittee of the Company comprised of Shri Ravindra Kumar Tandon, Ms. Manju Jain, Shri Raj Kumar Gupta.. 

e last S. MEETINGS / ATTENDANCE 
them During the financial year ended 31% March, 2024 two meetings were held on 30 January, 2024 and 15.03.2024. 
mbership 

note The attendance of the committee meetings is as under : 
anes Name of Members Meetings Held Meetings Attended Member Son Ravindra Kumar Tandon 2 1 Shr Raj Kumar Gupta 2 2 Ms. Manju Jain 2 2 

© REMUNERATION POLICY 
Remuneration policy of the company is directed towards rewarding performance, based on review of ri achievements. However during the year only sitting fee was paid to the Non-Executive Directors. Remuneration was paid to Executive Director as per the terms of his appointment approved by the general Socy 

The number of Equity Shares held by Non Executive Directors of the Company as on 31.03.2024 is as under:- Name of Directors Nos. of Shares Held eview Dr. K_B. Agarwal 41,44,519 
m the Shri R.K. Gupta 100 
ance Ms. Manju Jain 100 

5. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 
Details of Remuneration/Sitting Fee to all the Directors for the year ended 31st March, 2024. actors Name of Director Salary Benefits Sitting Fee Total Dr_K_B_ Agarwal - - 39000 30000 of its Dr. Mukul Agarwal z z 75000 15000 the Sha RK. Gupta = = 28000 26000 t the Ms Manju Jain c 4 40000 40000 Shr Ravindra Kumar Tandon « = 14000 14000 Sho G. D. Maheshwari 477300 129880 = 607180 

& STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
of the 4) The Share Transfer Committee inter-alia has been given the powers to deal with all the matters rs of related to transfer, transmission, issuance of duplicate share certificates, split and/or consolidation requesis. The Share Transfer Committee meats regularly. During the financial year ended 31% March, 2024, Four meetings were held on 29th April, 2023, 315 July, 2023, 31% October, 2023 and 30% January, 2024. The attendance is as under:- 

Name of Members Meetings Held Meetings Attended ee Ms. Manju Jain 4 4 _ Shr Ravindra Kumar Tandon 4 3 
ShriG.D. Maheshwari 4 4 
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8) 
A) 

B) 

Cc) 

B) COMPLIANC
E OFFICER & INVESTOR GRIEVANCE 

Smt. Namrata Shukla, Company Secretary & Compliance 
Officer is assigned with the responsibilitie 

overseeing Investor's Grievance. Her email address is keycorpltd@
gmail.com 

and Telept 

No.8604627 809. 

During the year under review, three complaints were received and the same were resolved. 

GENERAL BODY MEETING 

Location and time, where last three AGM
 s were held 

ee 
ee 

ree 
oe of the Meeting 

eater 
lag tees 

Slee ue
 

616-A, Civil Lines, Kanput 

zones J perosaoza [10a a — 16/16-A, Civil Lines, Kanpat 

goers — [gn 
— Tate ue oe 

6/16-A, Civil Lines, Kanpur 

During the year ended 31st March, 2024. n° special resolution has been proposed! passed | 

Company's shareholders through postal ballot. At the ensuing Annual General Meeting, there 

resolution proposed to be passed by postal ballot. 

DISCLOSURE
S 

CEOICFO CERTIFICATION
 

. 

A certification in accordance with Provisions of Clause 4g(V) of the Listing Agreement in respec! 

Financial year 2023-24 signed by CEO and CFO has been placed before the Board. 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Board of Directors has already adopted the Code of Ethics & Business conduct for the Direc 

Senior Manage
ment personnel. This code is a comprenensi

ve code applicable to all Executives 
© 

non executive directors and members of the Senior Management. 
A copy of the code has been 5 

the Company's website www.keycorpltd
.com. 

The CEO of the Company has submitted his report regarding Code of Conduct by the Directors 2! 

Management for the year ended 31% March, 2024 and the same is annexed with this report. 

RELATED PARTY TRAN
SACTIONS 

A comprehensi
ve list of Related parties & their transactions 45 required by INDAS-24 issued by 

Corporate Affairs in consultation with the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India, forms 

Annexure to the Notes to Accounts in the Annual Report & is placed before the Audit Committe
 

the transactions with any of the related parties were in conflict with the interest of the Company- 

D) WHISTLE BL
OWER POLICY 

E) 

40. 

he Company Promoters advocates ethical behaviour in all its business activities and has Ps 

mechanism for reporting illegal or unethical behaviour. The Company has a vigil mechanism and 4 

policy under which the employees are free to report violations of applicable laws and regulation: 

conduct. The reportable matters may be disclosed to the Ethics and compliance Task Force ™ 

under the supervision of the Audit Commitiee. 
Employees may also report to the Chairmar 

Committee. During the year under review no employes was denied access to the Audit Commits 

Management 
Discussions and Analysis Report 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the annual report. 

MEANS OF COMMUNIC
ATION 

The Company submitted its Annual, Half Yearly & Quarterly results to the Stock Exchange | 

the Listing Agreement and also published them in the two newspapers namely The Pior 

swatantra Chetana (Hindi). 

The financial results and shareholding pattern of the Company are also available ¢ 

www.keycorpi
td.com 

COMPLIANCE 

The Company Secretary, while preparing the Agenda, notes on agenda and minutes of 1 

responsible for and is required fo ensure adherence to all applicable laws and regulatio! 

Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued thereunder, 8S applicable and the Secre 

recommended 
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

Lie COE 
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11. GENERAL SHARE HOLDER INFORMATION 
A Annual General Meeting: 

Day, Date and Time - Saturday, the 10 August, 2024 
At 10:00 a.m 

Venue _- Ragistered Office of the Company at 

16/16-A, Civil Lines, Kanpur — 208 001 
8. Financial Calendar (tentative) 

Results for the quarter 
a) First Quarter Results -Within 45 days from the close of quarter ending June, 2024 
b) Second Quarter Results -Within 45 days from the close of quarter ending Sept., 2024 
c) Third Quarter Results -Within 45 days from the close of quarter ending Dec., 2024 
d) Results for the year ended 31.03.2025 -Within 60 days from the close of quarter/year ending March, 2025 

Annual General Meeting Upto September, 2025 

c. Book Closure Date - 4" August, 2024 to 10‘ August, 2024 
(Both days inclusive) 

D. Dividend Payment Date - Not Applicable (No Dividend proposed) 

Listing on Stock Exchanges 
The Company's shares are listed with B S E Limited, P J Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001. 

Mm
 

F. Stock Code 

Demat ISIN in NSDL/CDSL - INE130F01 016 

0 Stock Market Price data for the year 2023-2024 
During the year the market quotation of the stock at Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. 
Mumbai was as follows: 

Market Price Data ( = ) 
Month Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) 

High Low 
April, 2023 52.98 48.00 
May, 2023 65.31 48.00 
June, 2023 64.96 53.00 
July, 2023 61.90 55.04 
August, 2023 61.45 52.75 
September, 2023 | 59.80 53.68 
October, 2023 69.40 94.00 
November, 2023 | 60.69 55.05 
December, 2023 | 67.95 58.55 

January, 2024 113.60 58.70 
February, 2024 107,50 61.32 
March, 2024 102.63 83.46 

Share Price performance in comparison to broad based indices - BSE 
As only few transactions could take place in the Company's shares during the year hence the 
camparison of share price with BSE indices is not feasible. operates 

the Audit, Registrar and Transfer Agent 
Mis. ABS Consultants Pvt. Ltd., having its office at R.No. 99 Stephen House, 6th Floor 4 B.B.D. Bag 
(East). Kolkata - 700 001 are the Registrar and Transfer Agent for both demat and physical segment. 

J. Share Transfer System 
The Company's shares are traded in the Stock Exchanges Mumbai only in Demat mode. As per Rule 
physical transfer of shares is banned. 

. (a) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31° March, 2024 i 
No. of Equity Share| No. of Folios % of No. of Shares Held % of Shares 

Held Folios Held 
001 to 500 9621 96.09 1326116 22.10 
501 to 1000 282 2.82 222906 3.12 
1001 to 2000 72 0.72 102439 474 
2001 to 3000 16 0.16 38795 0.65 
3001 to 4000 04 0.04 13700 0.23 
4001 to 5000 06 0.06 28574 0.48 
5001 to 10000 08 0.08 56008 0.93 

10001 and above 03 0,03 4211462 70.19 
TOTAL 10012 100,00 6000000 100,00 
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(b) Categories of Shareholders as on 341° March, 2024 

Category % of Share Holding 
Promoters 69.08% 
Body Corporate 0.75% 
Banks/Fl's 0.01% 
Mutual Funds 0.01% 
Public(Indian) 

29.72% Public(NRI) 0.27% 
HUF 

0.16% 
Trust 

0.00% 

(c) There are no institutional investors who are shareholder's of the company. 

13.4 Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity 
As on 31st March, 2024, 78.02% of the Company's total shares representing 46,80,992 shares were held in dematerialised form and the balance 21.98% representing 13,19,008 shares were in physical form. 

Trading in Equity Shares of the Company is permitted only in Demat form. For having proper liquidity, the equity shares of the company is listed at Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd., Mumbai. 

13.B Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or 
any Convertible instruments, Conversion 
Date and likely impact on equity . NIL 

13.C Plant Locations : N.A. 

13.D Subsidiaries - NIL 

13.E Address for Correspondence 
(i) The Company's Registered Office is situated at 

16/16-A, Civil lines, 
Kanpur - 208 001 (U.P.) 
Tel: 8604627809 
Email: keycorpltd@gmail.com 

(ii) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
M/s. ABS Consultants Pvt, Ltd., 
R. No..99, Stephen House, 6th Floor, 4 B.B.D. Bag (East), Kolkata - 700 001 Tel: (033)-22201043, 22430153 
Email: absconsultant.99@gmail.com 
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were 
ysical 

uidity, 

Declaration regarding compliance by Board members and senior 
management personnel with the Company's Code of Conduct 

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its 

employees and Directors 

| confirm that the company has in respect of the financial year ended March 

31, 2024 received from the senior management team of the Company and 

the members of the Board, a declaration of compliance with the Code of 

Conduct as applicable to them. 

For the purpose of this declaration, senior management team means the 

Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and all functional heads of 

the Company as on March 31, 2024. 

Place : Kanpur (G. D. Maheshwari) 
Dated : 27% May, 2024 Executive Director & CEO 
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i 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To 

The Members of KEY CORP LTD. 

i, 

3. 

We ,V.P, Aditya & Co., Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of KEY CORP L 

(“the Company”), have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governa 
by the Company, for the year ended on 31st March, 2024, as stipulated in Regulations 
to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V to 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “List 
Regulations”). 

Management's Responsibility 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of 
Management, This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintena 
of internal control and procedures to ensure compliance with the conditions of 
Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation ther: 
adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corpor 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the finan 
statements of the Company. 

We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and docume 
maintained by the Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on 
compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company. 

We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued 
the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”), the Standards 
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far 
applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports 
Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICA] which requires that we comply w 
the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI. 

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Qua 
Controi (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Histor! 
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements. 

CERTIFIED TO BE AITRUE COPY 

For Key ae Ltd, 

este maa Porn! 
tat Tr. rT aa 

o
e
 

32



38th Annual Report 

Opinion 
7. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and 

explanations provided to us and the representations provided by the Management, we 
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C 

and D of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations during the year ended 31st March, 2024. 

8. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company, 

For V.P. ADITYA & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 000542C 

PLACE: KANPUR CA SURENDRA KAKKAR 
DATED:27/05/2024 Partner 

M.No. 071912 

UDIN:24071912BKLBDX7476 
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i 
To, 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

The Members of Key Corp Limited. 

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of KEY CORP LIMITED 

(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, the Statement 
of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash 
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and 

notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013 as amended (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of 
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2024, its profit (including other 

comprehensive income) and other Comprehensive income for the period, its cash flows 
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion ; 
We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Ind AS financial statements. 

. Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note No: 26 to the Ind AS financial statements, wherein it is stated 
that “During the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, the company’s Statement of Profit 
and Loss depicts a profit after tax of ¥ 31,57,09,613.83 which includes a surplus on 
measurement of assets / liabilities at fair value of = 31,67,99,823.00 in accordance with 
the requirements of Ind As. As per extant guidelines for the purposes of calculation of Net 
Profit for Corporate Social Responsibility contribution as per Section 198 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, the said amount of = 31,67,99,823.00 pertaining to surplus on 
measurement of assets/liabilities at fair value is not to be considered. Accordingly, the 
net profit after tax of the company for the purposes of Corporate Social Responsibility is 
below % 5 Crores and consequently the provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 

CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE COPY 

E 
tte AAT, 

34 

(Vv. Kh Pandey? 
Joint Sseretaru



38th Annual Report 

2013, is not applicable on the company. Further, for the purpose of calculating provision 

for tax this amount has also not been considered as per past practice”. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter. 

4, Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2024. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS 

financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of 

how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the 
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our 
report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the 

performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit 
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below provide 
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Ind AS financial statements. 

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit 

matter 

Accounting for Payment of Gratuity (Refer) @We have verified the provision of 

Note No. c financi gratuity in accordance with the 

statements): accounting policy followed by the 

The provision for retirement benefits for company to ensure that the provision 

gratuity is made as per the Payment of Gratuity is as advocated by the Payment of 

Act, 1972. The Indian Accounting Standard-19 Gratuity Act, 1972. 

prescribed by the Central Government is 

applicable to the company in its entirety as the 

company is a listed company. 

In formulating the accounting policy regarding 

employee benefits, the management of the 

company was motivated by the fact that 

average number of employees at any time 

during the year was less than 50. In similar 

circumstances, unlisted company are 

calculating and accounting for the accrued 

liability under the head (Gratuity) by some 

other rational method. Provision of the 

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 gives one such 

method. 

The management of the company decided to 

continue with the same accounting policy as it 

still feels that the size of the company does not 

make it feasible to provide gratuity by way of 

Actuarial Valuation. Considering _ the 

significance of the matter relating to making 

adequate provision regarding post- 

employment benefit in the nature of Gratuity (V. K, Pandey) an 
fomt Secratnt Ai 

e The method is being constantly 
followed by the company. 
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the same is considered to be a key audit 

matter. 

Information Other Than The Financial Statements 
‘And Auditor's Report thereon 

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but 

does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The 

Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on 

the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit ofthe Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to 

read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is 

materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, 

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind 

AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 

of “the Act” with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give 

a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified 

under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design; implementation and maintenance 

of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing 

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 

related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 

realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 

reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilit
ies for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statem

ents 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this Ind AS financial statements. 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform,audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control] relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial 
statements for the financial year ended 31% March, 2024 and are therefore the key audit 
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matters. We describe these matters in our Auditor's Report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
(i) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the 
Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 
to the extent applicable. 

(ii) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which ta the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books: 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity 
dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account: 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; except non compliance of IND AS-19 
“Employee Benefits” to the extent that the provisions for retirement benefits for 
Gratuity are made as per The Payment of Gratuity Act,1972 and not in the manner 
prescribed in IND AS-19 (Refer Note no. 12(d) of Ind AS Financial Statements. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31+ 
March,2024, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31 March,2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 
164(2) of the Act; 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate report in “Annexure B” to this report. 

g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31s March, 2024 has 
been paid/provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions 
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act; 

h)With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors’) Rules, 2014, (as 
amended) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

(i) There are no pending litigations on the company in respect of which a 
provision is required to be made, However refer to Note no. 5(c} of Ind AS 
Financial Statements. | ie 

(ii) _ The Company has not entered in any long term contracts including derivative 
contracts. Hence this clause is not applicable 
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(iii) | There are no amounts required to be transferred to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

(iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and 
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("intermediaries”), 
with the understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
company (“ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the ultimate Beneficiaries: 

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and 
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been 
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 
caused us to believe that the representations under sub- clauses (i) and (ii) 
contain any material mis-statement. 

i The Company has not declared dividend during the year. 
(wi The company has migrated to tally prime software in which (edit log) facility 

is enabled from DOS based fox pro during the year and the data of old 
software has been converted into new software tally prime for the period of 
transition. Further, during the course of audit we did not came across any 
instance of audit trail feature being tampered. 

For V.P. ADITYA & Co.- 
Chartered Accountants 

(FRN: 000542C) 

PLACE: KANPUR (CA SURENDRA KAKKAR) 
DATED: 27/05/2024 ate Partner 

Membership No. 071912 CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE COPY eughiip wes aan 
UDIN: 24071912BKLBDW7846 For Key Corp Ltd. 

Lot 
Be De * 
} Joint Secrets 



|
 

Annexure “A” Referred to in paragraph 8(i) of our Independent Auditors’ Report of even 

date to the members of Key Corp Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for the year 

ended 315t March, 2024, 

Based on such checks and other generally accepted auditing procedures carried on by us and 

according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that:- 

i) a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of its property, plant and equipment. 

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets; hence this clause of the Order is 

not applicable. 

b) The Company has certified that all the property, plant and equipment have been physically 

verified by the Management during the year and there is a regular programme of verification 

which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of 

its assets, No discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

c) On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable 

properties are held in the name of “Key Leasing and Finance Limited”, the erstwhile name of 

the Company. The details are as follows: 

Description | Gross Carrying Title Deed | Whether title | Period | Reasons for nol 

of Property Value () Held in deed holder held being held in 

the name isa the name of 

of promoter, Company 

director or 

their relative 

or employee 

Land at 6,70,447 /- Key No Since 20% | Key Leasing and 

16/16-A, 
Leasing 

day of Finance Limited | 

Civil Lines, 
and July,1987 the erstwhile nan 

Kanpur 
Finance 

of the company. 

Limited 

d) The Company has not rev 

assets) during the year and th 

e) During the year no proceedings have b 

holding any benami property under the 

1988) and rules made there under. 

ii) a) During the year, the company had no inventory in the nature of sto 

clause 3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable. 
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b) During any point of time of the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital 

limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate , from banks or financial institutions on the 

basis of security of current assets, hence this para is not applicable. 

iii) a) Since the Company's principal business is to give loans, accordingly the provision of clause 

3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

b) The Company is a Non- Banking Finance Company (NBFC), registered under provisions of 

RBI Act, 1934. In our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant 

of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided during the year are 

prima facie not prejudicial to the company’s interest. The company has not provided any 

; guarantees or security during the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 

c) The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC’), registered under 

provisions of RBI Act, 1934 and rules made there under, in pursuance of its compliance with 

provisions of the said Act/Rules, particularly, the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and 

Provisioning Norms, monitors repayments of principal and payment of interest by its 

customers as stipulated. In our opinion, in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, 

the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and is 

} regular. 

d) The Company, being a NBFC, registered under provisions of RBI Act, 1934 and rules made 

: thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of the said Act/Rules, particularly, 

the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms, monitors and report 

total amount overdue including principal and/or payment of interest by its customers for more 

than 90 days. As at 31st March, 2024 there are no overdue amounts exceeding 90 days. 

e) Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans, accordingly, the provision of clause 

3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to it. 

(f] The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable 

on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. 

iv) In our opinion, the Company has not granted any loan to directors etc. prescribed u/s 185 
of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Company is a Non Banking Financial Company; 
hence, Section 186 of the Act, is not applicable to the Company. 

v) The company has not accepted any deposits from the public. 

vi} The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of the cost records under 

section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the company. 

vii) a)The company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory 
dues including Goods & Service tax, provident fund, Income tax and other material statutory 

dues applicable to it. The Employees State Insurance Act is presently not applicable to the 

company. Further to our information, there were no undisputed amounts in respect of Income 

tax and other material statutory dues which were in arrears as at 31.03.2024 for a period of 

more than six months from the date these became payable. 

b) There are no dues of income tax & other material statutory dues which are required to be 

deposited on account of any dispute except referred to in Note no. 5(c) of Ind AS Financial 

Statements to the annual accounts. Further, Custom duty, excise duty & cess are not applicable 

to the Company. CERTIFIED TO HE A TRUR COPY 
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Vili} There are no transactions which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the 
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), hence this clause of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(ix) a) The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from any lender hence this clause 
and clauses (ix)(b), (ix){c), (ix)(d), (ix)(e) and (ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the 
company. 

(x) (a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3{x) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(b) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures 
during the year, 

(xi) (a) The Company has certified that no fraud by the company or any fraud on the company 
has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) During the year no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act have been filed 
by the auditors in Form ADT-4 with the Central Government. 

(c) During the year no whistle-blower complaint is received, hence this para is not applicable. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(xiii) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, transaction with related parties 
as identified by the management of the company, are in compliance with section 177 and 188 
of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial 
statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards. 

(xiv) (a) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion the company has an internal 
audit system commensurate with the size and nature of the business, though it needs 
improvement in respect of its extent of coverage. + - 

(b} The report of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit have been considered by us. 

(xv) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered 
into non cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is a Non Banking Financial Company requiring it to be registered under 
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Company has obtained the said 
registration. 

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non- Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities 
without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made 
by the Reserve Bank of India. : 

(d} The Company does not have any groups under Core Investment Company (CIC). 
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(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses of ¢ 4,78,545/- in the financial year and there 
was no Cash loss in the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 

(xix) On the basis of financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, 
the auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the 
opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that indicates that 
the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We further state 
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give 
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when fall due. 

(xx) The provisions of section 135 of the Act, is not applicable to the company, hence this para 
is not applicable (Refer Note no. 26 of the Ind AS Financial Statements). 

(xxi) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate and joint venture; hence this clause 
of the Order is not applicable. 

For V.P. ADITYA & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

(FRN: 000542C) 

(CA SURENDRA KAKKAR) 
Partner 

Membership No.: 071912 

UDIN:24071912BKLBDW7846 
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Annexure ‘B’ Referred to in paragraph 8(ii)(f) of our Independent Auditors’ Report of 

even date to the members of Key Corp Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for the 

year ended 315t March, 2024, 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) “ 

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS Financial 

Statements of Key Corp Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March, 2024 in conjunction with 

our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to the Ind AS Financial Statements and such internal financial controls 
were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2024, based on the internal financial 
controls reference to the Financial Statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”). 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls with reference to the Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”). 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with 

reference to the Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with 
reference to the Ind AS financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
the Ind AS financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls 
operated effectively in all material respect. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS 
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, 
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assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
of operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected 

the ; depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

143 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the 
Ind AS financial statements. 

ial Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Ind AS Financial Statements 
with A company’s internal financial control with reference to the Ind AS financial statements is a 

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

rols accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to the 
Tols Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that: 

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in ‘al accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and * 

the (3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized bie. acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the enal financial statements. 
duct 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Ind AS Financial ang Statements 
the Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS 

financial statements including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and nat be detected. Also, j projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS th financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls an with reference to the Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in 

a conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate, it 
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KEY CORP LIMITED 
16/16- CIVIL LINES, KANPUR-208001 

PART I -BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2024 

(“In Lakhs ) 

Particulars ie Asat 31.03.2024]  Asat31.03.2023 
ASSETS 

(1) |Financial Assets 

{a) [Cash and cash equivalents 1 20.50 13.33 
(b) }Receivables 

Trade Receivables 2 1.03 1.05 (c} [Loans 3 120.63 98,63 (d) [Investments 4 6169.76 4578.11 

(2) [Non-financial Assets 
(a) |Current tax assets 5 2.41 2.81 (b) |Deferred tax Assets (Net) 6 6.58 6.24 (c) |Property, Plant and Equipment 7 33.20 36.1 3} (d) /Other non-financial assets 8 1.32 1.16 Total Assets 6355.43 4737.51 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
(1) |Financial Liabilities 
(a) |Payables 

(I) Other Payables 

(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 1.37 5.66 micro enterprises and small enterprises 9 

(b) [Other financial liabilities 10 3.31 3.93 

(2) |Non-Financial Liabilities 
(a) /Other Non-financial liabilities Ly 0.16 0.12 (b) [Provisions 12 24.61 24.44 Total Liabilities 

29.45 34.15 

(3) [EQUITY 
(a) |Equity Share capital 13 600.00 600.00 (b) |Other Equity 14 5725.98 4103.36 Total Equity 

6325.98 4703.36 
Total Liabilities and Equity 6355.43 4737.51 See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 1-31 
Significant Accounting Policy 32 
In terms of our separate report For and on behalf of Key Corp Limited. of even date attached 

CIN; L65921UP1985PLC007547 

For V.P.ADITYA & CO, 

Chartered Accountants K.B. Agarwal G.D, Maheshwari (FRN : 000542C) (DIN:00339934) (DIN:00235209) 
(Chairman) (Executive Director) 

(CA SURENDRA KAKKAR) Ms. Namrata Shukla RN. Singh Partner 
(M. No. 59175) (Chief Financial Officer) Membership No, : 071912 (Company Secretary) 

Place : Kanpur 
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KEY CORP LIMITED 
16/16- A, CIVIL LINES, KANPUR-2Z08001 

PART IL- STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 ist MARCH, 2024 

(In Lakhs } 

Year ended March 31,| Year ended March 31, 
Particulars Note No. 2024 2023 

Revenue from operations 
G@) [Interest Income 15 26,56) 26.36 
(i) Dividend Income 4.07) 4,07 

(iii) = |Net profit on Fair Value Changes 4 3168.00 1534.49 

(iv) |Management Fees 1.84 1,47 

3 (Q) ‘| Total Revenue from operations 3200.47 1566.39 

(1) [Other Income 16 28.69 51.63 
(it) | Total Income (1+1) 3229.16 1618.02 

Expenses 

(i) ‘| Fees and Recovery expense 17 0.92 1.04 
(iii) | Employee Benefits Expenses 18 33.59 34,61 

(iv) |Depreciation, amortization and impairment it 5.09 4.72 

(v) | |Others expenses 19 32.79 41,48 

(1V) [Total Expenses (IV) 72.39 81.85 
* (V) | Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV) 3156.77 1536.16 

(V1) Exceptional items 0.00 0.00 
2 (VII) | Profit/(loss) before tax (V -V1) 3156.77 1536.16 

- (VII) |Tax Expense: 

(11 Current Tax 0.00 0.84 
(2) Deferred Tax 6 (0.34) [1.04)| 

(0.34) (0.19) 
(TX) ‘| Profit /(loss) for the period from continuing operations(VII-VIII) 3157.11 1536.36 

(CQ — |Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations 0.00 0.00 

Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XII) 3157.11 1536.36 

(XI) (| Other Comprehensive Income 

6 (A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 1633.51 121.41 

Gi) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or 0.00 0.00 
loss : ; 

8 sub total (A) 1633.51 121.41 
(B) (i) Iterns that will be reclassified ta profit or loss (3168.00) (1534.49) 

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 0.00 QO 

Sub total (B) (3168.00) (1534.49) 
Other Comprehensive Income (A + B) (1534.49) (1413.08) 

(XII) |Total Comprehensive Income for the period (X1+XII (Comprising 
= Profit/(Loss) and other Comprehensive Income for the period) 1622.62 123.28 

(XIV) |Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations) 

< Basic & Diluted (") 20 52.62 25,61 

(Excluding Other Comprehensive Income) 

+ Basic & Diluted (1) 27,04 2.05 

(Including Other Comprehensive Income) 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements, 1-31 
Significant Accounting Policy 32 

In terms of our separate report For and on behalf of Rey Corp Limited 

of even date attached CIN : L65921UP198SPLC007547 

| 
For V.P.ADITYA & CO. 

Chartered Accountants KB. Agarwal G.D. Maheshwari 
(FRN : 000542¢) (DIN:00339934) (DIN:00235209) 

(Chairman) (Executive Director) 

(CA SURENDRA KAKKAR) 

Partner Ms. Namrata Shukla RN. Singh 

Membership No. : 071912 (M. No. 59175) (Chief Financia) Officer) 

Place : Kanpur (Company Secretary) 

Dated :27.05.2024 CBRTIFIED TO HE ATRUF COPY 
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KEY CORP LIMITED 

46/16-A, CIVIL LINES, KANPUR-208001 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 

( In Lakhs) 

Year ended 

eeeiciLa® 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

7. CASH FLUW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit before tax 

3156.77 
1536.16 

Add: Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 
5.09 4,72 

Add: Interest to Income Tax 
0.00 1.23 

Less: Dividend from Mutual Funds 
(4.07) (4,07) 

Less: Gain from Mutual Funds Units 
(28.61) (51.58) 

Add: Income Tax Expense 
0.02 0,00 

Legs: Provision Written Off 
0.00 (0.04) 

Add: Provision for Standard Asset 
0.09 0.00 

Less: Mise. Income 
(0.04) (0.01) 

Less: Net (gain)/loss on fair value changes on investment 
(3168.00) (1534.49 

Operating profit be fore working capital changes 
(38.75) 

(48.08) 

movements in working capital: 

(Increase)/decrease in loans on vehicle 
(21.98) 9.44 

(Increase)/decrease in current assets and advances 
(0.16) 0.06 

Increase/(decrease) in provision for gratuity 
0.93 3.35) 

Increase/ (decrease) in current liabilities and advances 
(4.86) 1.40) 

Cash generated from operations 
26.07) 14.25 

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 
(0.46) (0.81) 

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities (A) 
65.28) (34.64) 

B. CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of Investment (Mutual Funds) 
0.00 (150.99) 

Sale of Investments (Mutual Funds) 
70,47 177.45 

Dividend from Mutual Funds 
4.07 4.07 

Purchase of Fixed Assets 
(2.13) (0.88) 

Sale of Fixed Assets 
0,04 0.04 

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (B) 
72.45 29.66 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net cash flows from financing activities (cj 
0.00 0.00 | 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 
7.17 (4.99) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 
13.33 18.32 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 
20.50 13.33 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

i) Cash on hand 
0.49 0.53 

if) Balances with banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents) 
20.01 12,80 

Total 

20.50 13.33 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements, 
1-31 

[significant Accounting Policy 
32 
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(a) 

(b) 

KEY CORP LIMITED 

(16/16-A, CIVIL LINES, KANPUR) 

Notes accompanying the financial statements for the year ended Bist March, 2024 

( In Lakhs) 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :- 

e As at 31st March, | Asat 31st March, 

Particulars 2024 2023 
(a) Balances with scheduled banks :- 
In current accounts 20,01 12.80 

(b) Cash on hand 0,49 0,53 
Total 20.50 13.33 

(c) There are no bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity, 

TRADE RECEIVABLES :- ( In Lakhs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Particalans As at 31st March, 

Less than 6 | 6 months-1 12 2-3 years |More than3 2024 
months year y ve years 

Undisputed Trade 
Receivables- 1.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.03 

Considered Good 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment As at 31st March, 

Less than 6 |6 months-1 iso vase 2-3 years |Morethan3 2023 
months year ve ¥ years 

Undisputed Trade 
Receivables- 1.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.05 

Considered Good 

Balance in accounts of trade receivables is subject to confirmation, 

All trade receivables are undisputed and outstanding for a period less than six months from the date they are due for payment. Further 
there are no debts that are due by directors or any other officers of the company either severally or jointly. Also there are no unbilled 
dues in respect of trade receivables as at 3st March,2024, 

In determing the value and credit loss of trade receivable of the Company the management has considered the historical credit loss 
experience associated with the trade receivables. Accordingly, the management does not envisage any credit risk or credit impairment of 
its undisputed trade receivables as at 31st March,2024, 

INVESTMENTS :- (In Lakhs) 
As at 31st March, | Asat 31st March, 

ina 2024 2023 
(a) Investments in Mutual Funds (Quoted) (Long term) 6169.76 4578.11 

(Details as per annexure annexed) 

Total 6169.76 4578.11 

(b) As at 31st March, 2024 there is only one type of investment i.e. in Mutual Funds which have been measured at Fair Value Through 

Profit & Loss A/c (FVTPL). 

CURRENT TAX ASSETS:- (In Lakhs) re As at 31st March, | Asat 31st March, 
—— 2024 2023 

'a) Advance Income tax 241 2.81 

(b) The Company is subject to Income Tax in India on the basis of financial statements. The company can claim tax 

exemptions/deductions under specific sections of the Income Tax Act,1961 subject to fulfillment to prescribed conditions , as may be 

applicable. As per the Income Tax Act ,1961 , the company is liable to pay income tax based on higher of regular income tax payable or the 

amount payable based on the provision applicable for Minimum Alternative Tax(MAT). MAT paid in excess of regular income tax during a 

year can be carried forward for a period of fifteen years and can be offset against future liabilities arising from regular income tax. 
c fO BE A TRUE COPY 
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(A) 

() 
tii) 

(i) 
(ii) 

(B) 

(a) 

(J) The above sum includes * 2,00,000/- paid as Advance tax for the A.Y. 2020-21 wherein ex-party assesment have been made by making 

additions contrary to the facts, law and principal of natural justice by the Assesing officer. Hence the demand has not been accepted as 

liability and first appeal has been filed which is still pending. 

( In Lakhs) 

As at 31st March, | As at31ist March, 
SE DEFERRED TAX ASSEST (NET) aida 2023 

Disclosures under Indian Accounting Standards-12 “Income Tax” 

The Company has proceeded to account for Net Deferred Tax Assets of * 657909 /-as at 31st 

March, 2024 (Previous Year *623877/- )in accordance with the said standard. 

The Break-up of Deferred Tax assets/ (liability) is as under:- 

Depreciation 0.30 0.21 

Gratuity 6.27 6.03 

Total 6.58 6.24 

Amount recorgnised in the balance sheet under Deferred Tax Reserve is *83 700/- (Previous 

Year *83700/-) 

Deferred Tax (Charge)/ Credit for the year 

Opening Net Deferred Tax Asset 6.24 5.20 

Less: Closing net Deferred Tax 6.58 6.24 

Change in Deferred Tax Asset Account (0.34) (1.04 

Recognized as: 
(Debit) / Credit to Deferred Tax Reserve Account 0.00 0 

Deferred Tax Charge /(Credit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss (0.34) (1.04) 

The reconciliation of estimated income tax to income tax expense is as below : 
{In Lakhs) 

' Asat3ist March, | As at 3istMarch, 

Tecan 2024 2023 
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 3156.77 1536.15 

Expected income tax expense at statutory income tax rate of 26%,(Previous Year 26%) 820.76 399.40 

Income exempt from tax/Ttems not deductible/allowable as expenditure & brought forward 821.10 399.59 

loss etc. 

Tax Expense as reported (As Per Provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961) (0.34) (0.19) 

Other Non Financial Assets:- (‘In Lakhs) 

As at 31st March, | As at 31st March, 

rasta 2024 2023 
(a) Advance to The Registrar State Consumer Commission 0.25 0.25 

(b) Prepaid expenses (ta the extent not written-off ) 0.47 0,32 

(©) Security deposit with Kesco Ltd. 0.54 0.54 

(cd) Security deposit with PNG 0,06 0.06 

Total 1,32 1.16 

Other payables:- : ( In Lakhs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of 

Particulars en As at 31st March, 2024 
Less than 1 ao vearall| 2uicea More than 3 

Year y x years 

Others 1.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 137 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of 

Particulars Lo dtc As at 31st March, 2023 
Less than 1 More than 3 

1-2years | 2-3 years 
Year years =: 

Others 2.62 0.82 0.00 2.22 5.66 
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(b) 

10 

11 

12 

The company has not received any memorandum (as required to be filed by the suppliers with the notified authority under the Micro, 

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006),claiming their status as Micro, Small or Medium enterprises. Consequently, the 

amount paid/ payable to these parties during the year is * Nil (Previous Year * Nil). 

Other Financial Liabilities:- ( In Lakhs) 

As at 31st March, | As at 31st March, 

cigpbenatle's 2024 2023 
(a) Instalment received in advance from customers 1.02 1.95 

(b) Other Charges received in advance from customers 137 1.37 

(c) Liabilty for expenses 0.92 0.61 

Total 3.31 3.93 

Other Non-Financial Liabilities:- (In Lakhs) 

As atJi1st March, | As at 31st March, 

Ransenlaee 2024 2023 
(a) Goods & Service Tax Payable 0.08 0.07 

(b) Tax deducted at Source (Payable } 0.08 0.05. 

Total 0.16 0.12 

PROVISIONS:- (In Lakhs) 

; As at3 1st March, | As at 31st March, 
Particulars 2024 2023 

(a) Provision for Employees benefits 24.13 23,20 
(b) Provision against Standard Assets 0.48 0.39 

(c) Provision for Tax (MAT) E.Y. 2022-23 0,00 0.84 
Total 24.61 24.44 

(d) The Indian Accounting Standard-19 "Employee benefits", issued by ICAI ,is applicable to the company in its entirety as the company is 

a listed Company. In formulating the accounting policy regarding employee benefits, The managment was motivated by the fact that 

average number of employees at any time during the financial year,were 17 i.e, less than 50, In similar circumstances, unlisted companies 

have been permitted to calculate and account for the accrued liability under the head "Gratuity", by some other rational method, 

Provision of The Payment Of Gratuity Act,1972 gives one such method. This is based on the assumption that such benefits are payable to 

all employees at the end of the accounting year. The management still feels that the size of the company does not make it feasible to 

provide Gratuity by way of actuarial valuation, Hence, it is decided to continue with the same accounting policy. 
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( In Lakhs) 

13. Equity Share Capital 

Particulars Asat 31st March,2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Authorised : 

10000000 Equity Shares of *10/- each 1000.00) 1000,00 

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid-up: 

60,00,000 Equity Shares of *10/- each 600.00] 600.00 

(a)The Reconciliation of umber of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year: 

Particulars Asat3 ist March,2024 As at 31st March,2023 

No. of Shares No. of Shares 

[Rquity Shares at the Beginning of the year 6,000,000 6,000,000 

Changes during the year 0.00 0 

Equity Shares at the end of the year 6,000,000 6,000,000 

(b )Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company(Face value ~ 10/- per share) 

Varsicnlars Asat 31st March,2024 As at 31st March,2023 

Name of the Shareholder Number of Shares held % Holding|Number of Shares % Holding 
held 

[Shri K.B, Agarwal 4144519 69.08 4144519 69.08 

(C) The company has only one class of equity shares having face value of * 10/- each and each shareholder is entilied to one vote per share . 

{d) Details of Shareholdings of Promoters as given below: 

Shares held by Promoters at the end of year Shceangs cee leg 
the year 

Promoters name No. of Shares % of total shares 

Shri KB. Agarwal 4144519 69.08 0 
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15. Interest Income: ( tm Lakhs) 

Year endad Maren 31.04,2024 Year ended March 31.03.2024 

Particulars On Financial Assets measured at ‘On Financial Interest Income | Total On Financial | On Financial Assets |Interest |Total 
amortized cnst Assets measured |on Financial Assets measured atfair Income 

at falr value Assets classitled measured at |value through OCT jon 

through OCI at fair value amortised Financia 

through Profit or cost LAssets 
loz classifie 

dat fair 

value 

through 
Profit or 

loss 

(a) Intereston Loans 26.04 0.00 Doo 26.04 25.95. 0 0 25.95, 

S Catto: Inter oat os2 a.00 0.00 ase ot o a ol 
SACO Mc 

Total 2656 0.00 0.00. 26.56 26.36 o 6 26.36 

16. Other Income:- { tn Lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 31st March, 2024 Year ended 31st March, 2023 

(i) Net gain/ (loss) on sale of investments 28.61 51.58 

(i) Other non-operating income (net of expenses ) 
{a) Balances /Provision Written Back O00 0.04 
(b) Miscellaneous Income 0.04) 0.01 

(c) Profit on Sale of Assets Ot 0.00 

_ Total {(i)+(t)) 20.69 51.63 

17. Fees and Recovery expense:- (In Lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 31st March, 2024 Year ended 31st March, 2023 

{b} Recovery Expenses 0.92 1.04 

Total 0.92 1.04 

18. Employee Benefits Expenses: (In Lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 31st March, 2024 Year ended dist March, 2023 

(a} Salarios expenses 25.55 25.54 
(b)Bonus / Ex-Gratia 1.46 146 

(c) Contribution ta Provident Fund 1.6? 1.58 
(4) Employees Pension Fund 0.43 0.53 
(ce) Adrninistradve Expenses & Insurance co PF. O16 0.16 

(€) Provision for Gratuiny 0.93 3.35 
(¢}Leave Encashmenc tt Lao 

(h) Staff welfare expenses 0.72 0.59 
(i) Medical Expenses: 0.96 0,00 

Total, 33.59 34.61 

Key Managerial Personnel Remuneration :- (In Lakhs) 

G.D. Maheshwari (Executive : 
Particulars Director} B.N. Singh (CFO) 

Salary ATF 2.88 
Other benefits & 130 0.85, 

Allowances, 

Total 6.07 374 
Previous Year 13 5.59 

Note: As no commission is payable ta the Diretars of the Company, computation af net profit u/s 198 of the Companies Act 2014 has not heen given. 

19_ Other Expenses; (In Lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 31st March, 2024 Year ended 31st March, 2023 

(a) Conveyance Expenses 6.07 Tia 
(b) Power and Fuel 2.49 2.69 
(c) Rates & Taxes oxeluding taxes on Income 415 0.69 
(@) Repales to Machinery O10 0.38 
(e) Insurance 043 0.46 
(6) Auditors's Remuneration 

(1) Statutory Audit Fee O40 40 
(if) Tax Audit Fee 0.08. 0.05 

(pt) rectors Sitting fee 1.27 4.29 

(h) Internal Audit Fees o.08 0.07 
(OMiscellaneous Pore 278 9.93 
(J) Donations 5.00 5.00 

(i) Service Charges 0.92 0.73 
(l) Professional Charges 1.60 2.99 

(m) Fine (BSE) 035 9.72 
(h) Balance Written OFF 0.00 0.00 
Total 32,79. 414n 

Note: During the financial year 2023-24, a penalty of * 35400/-(P-Y.” 9,72,320/-) has been levied on the company by BSE Ltd ont account of non compliance of SEB] 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

CRE TO BE A_TRUE ood. 
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20.Rarning per Share :- 

( In Lakhs) 

Year ended Year ended March 
Particulars March 31,2024 31,2023 

Net profit available for equity shareholders 1622.62 123.27 

(Including Other Comprehensive Income) 

Net profit available for equity shareholders Sts7A1 1536.35 

{Excluding Other Comprehensive Income) 

{Numerator used for calculation} 

Number of equity shares 60.00 60.00 

(Used as Denominator for calculating EPS) 

(1) Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share of Rs. 10/-each 27.04 2.05 

{Including Other Comprehensive Income) 

{2)Basic and Diluted Earning per share of Rs. 10/- 52.62 25.61 

{Excluding Other Comprehensive Income) 

“There is no diluted earning per share in the company 
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22 (a) The company follows the Reserve Bank of India guidelines applicable to Non Banking Financial Companies 

regarding assets classification, provisioning and income recognition on non performing assets and 

accounting for Investments. 

(b) Information required to be disclosed in terms of Non-Banking Banking Financial- Systemically important 

(Non Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank ) Directions ,2016. 

As required in the terms of Non-Banking Financial-Non Systemically Important (Non Deposit Accepting 

or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016} 

Schedule to the Balance Sheet 

LIABILITIES SIDE: 

% in Lacs 

(1) Loans and Advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of interest Amount Amount overdue 
accrued thereon but not paid : outstanding 

{a) Debentures : Secured NIL 
‘Unsecured NIL NIL 
(other than falling within the 
meaning of public deposits) * 

(b) Deferred Credits NIL NIL 
(c) Term Loans NIL NIL 
(d) Inter-corperate leans and borrawings NIL NIL 
(e) Commercial Paper NIL NIL 
(f) Other Loans (specify nature) NIL NIL 

* See note 1 below ; 

ASSETS SIDE: 
tin Lacs @ i ing bills receivable (other Amount Amount overdue 

than those included in (3) below: outstanding 
(a) Secured NIL 
{b) Unsecured 148 148 

(3) Break-up of Leased Assets and Stock on hire and other Assets 

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals 

under sundry debtors : 
{a) Financial Lease NIL 
(b) Operating Lease NIL NIL 

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges 
under sundry debtors ; 

(a) Assets on hire NIL 
(b) Repossessed Assets NIL NIL 

(iif) Other loans counting towards 

AFC activities ; 

(a) Loans where assets have been 
repossessed NIL 

(b) Loans other than (a) above 121.66 121.66 

(4) Break-up of Investments: 

CURRENT INVESTMENTS : 

(2) Quoted: 
(i) Shares: (a) Equity NIL 

(b) Preference NIL 
(ii) Debenture and Bonds NIL 
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds NIL 
{iv) Government Securities NIL 
(v) Others (please specify) NIL NIL 

(2) Unquoted ; 
(i) Shares: (a) Equity NIL 

(b) Preference NIL 
(ii) Debenture and Bonds NIL 
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds NIL 
(iv) Government Securities ; 2UER COPNIL 
(v) Others (please specify) can BD TO BE A T) “ 
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LONG TERM INVESTMENTS: 

(1) Quoted: 
(i) Shares: (a) Equity NIL 

(b} Preference NIL 

(ii) Debenture and Bonds NIL 

(iii) Units of Mutual Funds 6169.76 
(iv) Government Securities NIL 

(v) Others (please specify) soe eee EE 6169.76 

{2) Unquoted ; 
(i) Shares : (a) Equity NIL 

(b) Preference NIL 

{ii) Debenture and Bonds NIL z 

(iii) Units of Mutual Funds NIL 
(iv) Government Securities NIL 

{v) Others (please specify) NIL NIL 

(5) Borrower group-wise classification of Assets financed as in (2) 

See note 2 below 

tin Lacs 

CATEGORY Amount Net of Provisions 

| Secured Unsecured Total 

(1) Related parties** se 
(a) Subsidiaries NIL NIL NIL 

(b) Companies in the same group NIL NIL NIL 

(c) Other related parties NIL NIL NIL 

(2) Other than Related parties 121.66 1.48 123.14 
Fotal: 121.66 148 123.14 

‘6) Investor group-wise classification of all Investment (current & long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and 
unquoted) : 

See note 3 below Tin Lacs 

CATEGORY Market value/ Break-up Book value (net 

{flair value/ NAV of Provisions) 

(1) Related parties** 
(a) Subsidiaries NiL J NIL 

(b) Companies in the same group NIL NIL 
(c) Other related parties NIL NIL 

(2) Other than Related parties 6169.76 3001.76 
Total: 6169.76 3001.76 

** As per Accounting Standard of ICAI (See Note below) 

Other Information Tin Lacs 
PARTICULARS Amount 

(i) Gross Non-performing assets : 
(a) Related Parties NIL 

(b) Other than related parties NIL NIL 

(ii) NetNon-performing assets : 
(a) Related Parties NIL 

(b) Other thanrelated parties NIL NIL 

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt NIL NIL 
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NOTES: 

1 As defined in point xxii of Paragraph 3 of Chapter -Il of Master Direction Non- Banking Financial Companies Non- 

r4 

23 In the financial year 2023-24 the Company has operated in only one business segment, hence, compliance of 

Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. 

Provisioning norms are applicable as pr escribed in Master Direction Non- Banking Financial Company -Non- 

Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. 

All Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAI are applicable including for valuation o| 

Investments and other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, market value in respect o! 

value/NAV in respect of unquoted investments has been disclosed quoted investments and break-up /fair 

irrespective of whether they are classified as long term or current in column (4) above. 

Ind AS-108 regarding "Operating Segments" is not applicable, 

24 

(Amount in %) 
A) Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 

In Respect of ; 

Rendering of Services 

1_|Shri Madan Maheshwari 185679.00} 184075.00 
2 |Smt Namrata Shukla 120000.00| 120000.00 

Total 305679,00} 304075.00 
Key Managerial Remuneration 

1_|Shri G.D, Maheshwari 607180,00| 613299.00 
2 [Shri R.N.Singh 374770.00} 359077.00 

Total (A) 1287629.00] 1276451.00 

B) |Subsidiaries There is no subsidiary of the company 

Cc) [Promoter Director |Dr. K.B. Agarwal 

D) |Key Management Personel shri G.D.Maheshwari 

Smt Namrata Shukla 

Shri R.N.Singh 

Relative of Promoter Director & Key Management Mr. Madan Maheshwari (Brother of Shri 
E) |Personel G.D.Maheshwari) 
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25, Contingent Liabilities 

Contingent Liability not provided for (2023-24) (2022-23) 

Claims against the Company not acknowledged “Nil Nil 

as debt 

26. During the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, the company’s statement of Profit and 
Loss depicts a profit after tax of ° 315709613.83 which includes a surplus on measurement of 
assets / liabilities at fair value of *316799823/- in accordance with the requirements of Ind 
As. As per extant guidelines for the purposes of calculation of Net Profit for Corporate Social 
Responsibility contribution as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, the said amount of 
316799823 /- pertaining to surplus on measurement of assets /liabilities at fair value is not 
to be considered. Accordingly, the net profit after tax of the company for the purposes of 
Corporate Social Responsibility is below * 5 Crores and consequently the provision of Section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable on the company. Further, for the purpose of 
calculating provision for tax this amount has also not been considered as per past practice. 

27. As required by Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, the Financial ratios for the year 
ended 31st March,2024, are as follows: 
Serial No. | Name of the Ratios Ratio(%) Ratio(%) 

for C.Y. for P.Y. 
i. Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) 133.34 124,77 
Z. Tier | CRAR 132.09 123.52 
a3 Tier [| CRAR 1.26. L2Z5 
4, Liquidity Coverage Ratio *Refer Note below 

*As per Reserve Bank of India Circular No. RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC(PD) CC.No. 
102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 04.11.2019 Liquidity Coverage ratio is not applicable to 
company as it is non deposit taking company of which asset size is below * 5000 Crores nor it 
is a Core Investment Company Type-I NBFC-NDs, Non Operating Financial Holding Company 
and Standalone Primary Dealer, 

28. The figures in rupees have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs unless otherwise stated. 

29. Previous year's figures have been regrouped, re-arranged and re-stated wherever 
necessary to conform to the figures of the current year. 

30. Corporate Information - - 

REY CORP Limited (the Company) is a public limited company domiciled in India and 
mcorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on BSE 
Limited. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of financing, particularly in old 
vehicle finance and investment of surplus funds in mutual funds. The Company is registered 
with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The registration 
<etails are as follows: 
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i 
RBI B-12.00414 | 

Corporate Identity Number L65921 UP1985 PLC007547 

(CIN) 

The registered office of the Company is 16/16-A, CIVIL LINES, KAN PUR-2 08001. 

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31: March, 2024 wer 

approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors o1 

27.05.2024. 

31. The Company has migrated to tally prime software, in which edit log facility is enablec 

from DOS based fox pro during the year and data of old software has been migrated int 

new software Tally prime for the period of transition. 

32. Significant Accounting Policies 

(i) Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with India 

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accountin 

Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time). The financial statements hav 

been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the application of fai 

value measurements required or allowed by relevant Accounting Standards. Accountin 

policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated. 

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accountin 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenuc 

and expenses and the disclosed amount of contingent liabilities. Estimates an 

assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are based on managemet 

evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial statement 

which may differ from the actual results at a subsequent date. 

(ii)Presentation of financial statement 

The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule III (Division III) 

the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of Corpora 

Affairs (MCA). Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported on a gro 

basis except when, there is an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset tl 

recognized amounts without being contingent on a future event and the parties intend 

settle on a net basis in the following circumstances: 

i. The normal course of business 

ii. The event of default 

iii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties 
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(iii) Financial instruments:- 

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity anda financial liability or equity instrument of another. 

Financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, investments insecurities and other eligible current and noncurrent assets. 

Financial liabilities include long term and short-term loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and other eligible current and noncurrent liabilities, 

Initial recognition of all financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value or amortized cost as appropriate. 

Financial assets are Subsequently classified into the following three categories based on review at the end of each reporting period on the basis of either company’s business model for Managing the financial assets or contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets: 
» Financial assets at amortized cost, 
» Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income % » Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, Financial liabilities are Subsequently classified into the following two categories based on review at the end of each reporting period: 
>» Financial liabilities at amortized cost 
> Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss, 

Financial assets are de-recognized when either the rights to receive cash flows from the asset has expired or when the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that have been recognized in Other Comprehensive Income, is recognized in profit and loss. 

The Company assesses the impairment/write-off of financial assets on a forward- ‘ooking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortized cost and at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income, The 

against such loans are credited to the Statement of profit and loss, With regard to recognition of Estimated Credit Loss (ECL) to provide for impairment losses the same = applied using the simplified approach as permitted by IND AS 109 “Financial 
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Financial liabilities are de-recognized when its contractual obligations are discharged 
or cancelled or expire. 

(iv) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the net amount of short-term, highly liquid investments 

that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash (short-term deposits with an original 

maturity of three months or less) and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, 
cheques on hand and balances with banks. They are held for the purposes of meeting short- 
term cash commitments (rather than for investment or other purposes). 

| For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and 
short- term deposits, as defined above. 

(v) Property, plant an uipmen 

Items of Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment loss, (if any). The total cost of assets comprises its purchase price, 
freight, duties, taxes and any other incidental expenses directly attributable to the cost for 
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by the management. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by 
changing the amortization period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in 
accounting estimates. 

Expenditure related to an item of tangible assets are added to its gross value only if it increases 
the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of 

| performance and cost can lhe measured velldlly. Qther vepaiys and maintenance costs are 

treated as expenses as and when incurred. 

Property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 

benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset 

(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 

asset) is recognized as other income / expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year 

when the asset is derecognized., 

(vi) Depreciation 

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (PPE) is calculated using the straight-line 

method based on useful life as specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

(vii) Intangible assets 

An intangible asset is recognized only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable 

that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company. 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. 
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(viii) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date to ascertain if there is any 

indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized 

wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount 

is the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. 

In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no 
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. After impairment, 
depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaini ng useful life. 

(ix) Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 
a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation, 

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any 
reimbursement. 

(x) Revenue Recognition 

(a) Allincome and expenses are accounted for on accrual basis, except otherwise stated. 

(b) Interest Income 
Interest income is recognized by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying 
amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as 
measured at Fair Value through Profit & loss account (FVTPL). 
The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed: 
i, As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of 

the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. 
ii. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash 

flows. 

iii. Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the 
effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. 
Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognized in interest 
income with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets. 

(c) Dividend Income 

Dividend income is recognized 
a. When the right to receive the payment is established, 
b. itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and 

__c, the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably 
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(d) Fees & Commission Income 

Fees and commissions are recognized when the Company satisfies the per ormance ob ] 

fair Value of the consideration received o1 receivable, umess included in the effec tive interast 

calculation. 

gation, at 

(e) Net gain on Fair value changes 

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit 
or loss, held by the Company on the balance sheet date is recognized as an unrealized gain / loss. In 
cases where there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is recognized in “Net gains on fair value 
changes “under Revenue from operations and if there is a net lass the same is disclosed under 
“Expenses” in the statement of Profit and Loss, 

Similarly, any realized gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt 
instruments measured at FVOCI is recognized in net gain / loss on fair value changes. 

(i) The Company has followed the prudential norms for income recognition and provisioning for 
non-performing assets as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India for Non-Banking Financial 
Companies, 

(xi) Retirement and other employee benefits 

(a) Short term employee benefit 

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as 
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include short term compensated absences such as paid 
annual leave which is accounted for as per Service Rules and charged to the Statement of Profit & 
Loss account. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in 
exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognized as an expense during the period. 
Benefits such as salaries and wages, etc. and the expected cost of the bonus/ex-gratia are recognized 
in the period in which the employee renders the related service. 

(b)post-employment employee benefits 

(a) Provisions for Retirement benefits for Gratuity are made as per The Payment of Gratuity Act, 
1972, 

(b)Contribution to Provident Fund is recognized when due. 

(xii) Taxation 

Tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in statement of 
profit & loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in the comprehensive income or 
in equity in which case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or equity. 
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(a) Current Tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date. 

correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate, 
(b) Deferred tax 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences arising between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, Deferred income tax is determined using 
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are 
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax 
liability is settled, 

Deferred tax assets are only recognized for temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax 
credits if it is probable that future taxable amounts will arise to utilize those temporary differences 
and losses. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent 
that itis no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
current tax assets and liabilities and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on 
the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities 
and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities are realized simultaneously. 

(c) Goods and Service Tax 

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses are recognized net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, except: (i) When the tax imeurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the tax paid is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as 
part of the expemte itees a< applicable, 

(li) When receivables ane payables are stated with the amount of tax included. The net amount of tax recoverable Guus or esyable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the bellmnee shee 

(xiii) Earnings pew Spc. 

The Company reqerts theca and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on 
Earnings per se. 

(xiv) Contingent Listens 

A contingent Ganiiee = ¢ esis o5ligation that arises from past events whose existence will be 
confirmed by tae gece oe Sem-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond 
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M 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent! 

liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognizec 
because it cannot be measured reliably. 

(xv) Recent Pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing 

standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For 
the year ended March 31, 2024 MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the 
existing standards applicable to the company. 

In terms of our separate report 

Of even date attached 

For V.P. ADITYA & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

(FRN: 000542) 

(CA SURENDRA KAKKAR) 

Partner 

M. No: 071912 

Place: Kanpur 

Date: 27.05.2024 

For and on behalf of Key Corp Limited 

CIN: L65921UP1985PLC007547 

K.B, Agarwal G.D. Maheshwari 

(DIN: 00339934) (DIN: 00235209) 
(Chairman) (Executive Director) 

Ms. Namrata Shukla R.N. Singh 

(C.P. No. 59175) (Chief Financial Officer) 

(Company Secretary) 
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KEY CORP LIMITED 
16/16-A, Civil Lines, Kanpur - 208 001 

CIN-L65921 UP1985 PLC007547 
e-mail : keycorpltd@gmail.com 

PLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANGE OF THE MEETING HALL™ 

@ 8604627809 

Joint shareholders may obtain additional Slip at the venue of the meeting 

[op io Folio No. 
Client Id* No.of Shares 
NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE SHAREHOLDER 
(hereby record my presence at the 38th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held on Saturday, August40, 2024 at 10.00 a.m. 
at the Registerd office of tha company al 16/16A GIVIL LINES KANPUR 

“Applicable for invertors holding shares in electronic form. Signature of Shareholders proxy 

PROXY FORM 
[Pursuant lo section 105(6)of the Companies 
ACT,2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules 2014) 
KEY CORP LIMITED 

CIN: L65921UP1985PLCo07547 
16/16A, CIVIL LINES 
KANPUR-208004 

Name of the member(s): e-mail Id 
Registered Office: 

Folio Nos*Client td: 
“DP Id: 

\We,being the member(s) of shares of Key Corp Limited hereby appoint: 
1) of having e-mail id or failing him 2) of having e-mail id or falling him 3) of having e-mail id 

and whose signature(s) are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a pall) for me/us and on myfour Genera! Meeting of the 
Company to be held on Saturday 10th August 2024 at 10.00am al the Registerd office of the company at 16/164 Civil Lines Kanpur-208001 
and al my adjournment there of in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: “iwish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below: 
Resolutions 

For Against Ordinary Business | | 

he
 .| Adoption of Financial Statements, for the year ended 31st March, 2024, 

2.| Appeintment of Dr, Mukul Agarwal who retires by rotation. 

uw
 

Appointment of Auditors and fixing their remuneration. 
Special Business / Special Resolution 

f Re-appointment of Shri Raj Kumar Gupta as an Independent Director. 

a Approve the continuing the Directorship of Ms Manju Jain as an Independent Director, 
6.| Approve the continuing the Directorship of Or K.B. Agarwal as a Non-Independent Director, 

——————— Signed this day of 2024 
Signature of shareholder 

Signature of first proxy holder Signature of second Proxy holder Signature of third proxy holder 
Notes: 

1 

2 
3 

This form of Proxy In order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company 
not logs than 48 hours before the commencement of the meating. A Proxy need not be member of the Company. 
A person can act a Proxy on behalf of members not @xceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total 

This is only optional, Please put a 'X' in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box.if you leave the ‘For or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitlad to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate. 
Appcinting a proxy does not prevent member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes. 

_ 
Inthe case of Jointholders,—the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but name of all the jointholders should be stated. CBEATIFIEN 1) pe yg 

For Key Corp Ua. 

(V. K. Pancey) 
Joint Secretary 


